Page 1

Page 7

Page 11

(1)
(2)

(3)
(4)
(a)

(5

(6)
(a)

CULTUS LAKE PARK BOARD

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 18, 2020
7:00 PM

PARK OFFICE BOARDROOM
4165 Columbia Valley Highway, Cultus Lake, BC

CALL TO ORDER

RESOLUTION TO PROCEED TO CLOSED MEETING (4:30 PM)

THAT the meeting be closed to the public to consider matters pursuant to the following sections of
the Community Charter:

Section 90 (1), (d) security of the property of the municipality; and

Section 90 (1), (k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed providing of a
municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in the view of the council, could
reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality if they were held in public.
RECONVENE

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Agenda for the Regular Meeting of
March 18, 2020; and

THAT all delegations, reports, correspondence and other information set to the Agenda be
received.

ADOPTION OF MINUTES

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board adopt the minutes of the Regular Meeting held
February 19, 2020.

ADOPTION OF COMMITTEE MINUTES

Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committees Minutes
e Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committees Minutes dated February 21, 2020

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the minutes of the Environmental and Public Areas
Planning Committee held on February 21, 2020.

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\03 18 2020\1 2020 03 18 regular meeting agenda.docx

o
—



Page 17

Page 23
Page 25

Page 31

Page 55

Page 57

Page 59

Page 61

AGENDA March 18, 2020
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting Page 2

()
(a)

(8)
(a)

(c)

(e)

FINANCE

2020-2024 Financial Plan Amendment Bylaw 1173, 2020

¢ Report dated March 18, 2020 from Erica Lee, Manager of Finance
e 2020 - 2024 Financial Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 1173, 2020

e Schedules A, B, C

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third readings to Cultus Lake Park 2020
- 2024 Financial Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 1173, 2020.

BYLAWS

Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 1165, 2020
e Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 1165, 2020

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading the Cultus Lake Park Sunnyside Campground
Bylaw No. 1165, 2020

Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020

e Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw
No. 1153, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020.

Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1167,

2020

e Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1167,
2020

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Board Property
Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1167, 2020.

Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1168,

2020

o  Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1168,
2020

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Boating and
Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020.

Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Requlations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw

No. 1169, 2020

e Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw
No. 1169, 2020

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic
Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020.

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\03 18 2020\1 2020 03 18 regular meeting agenda.docx

o
N



Page 65

Page 67

Page 97

Page 99

Page 109

Page 113

Page 121

Page 123
Page 131

AGENDA March 18, 2020
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting Page 3

(f)

(9)

()

(k)

Cultus Lake Park Management of Public Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No.

1170, 2020

o Cultus Lake Park Management of Public Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No.
1170, 2020

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Management of
Public Areas Bylaw no. 1146, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1170, 2020.

Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No.

1171, 2020

o Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No.
1171, 2020

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice
Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1171, 2020.

Public Feedback regarding Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and

Home-Based Businesses

e Report dated March 18, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services,
Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement

o Public Feedback regarding Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and
Home-Based Businesses

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the Short-Term Rentals, Bed and Breakfasts,
Secondary Suites and Home-Based Businesses Community Meeting Report for information.

Proposed Short-Term Rental Bylaw No. 1174, 2020
o Report dated March 18, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services,

Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement
e Short-term Rental Bylaw No. 1174, 2020

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First and Second readings to the Cultus Lake Park Short-
Term Rental Bylaw No. 1174, 2020.

Home- Based Business Bylaw No. 1175, 2020 and Commercial Business Licences Bylaw

No. 1176, 2020

¢ Report dated March 18, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services,
Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement

e Home- Based Business Licence Bylaw No. 1175, 2020

e Commercial Business License Bylaw No. 1176, 2020

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First and Second readings to the Cultus Lake Park Home-
based Business License Bylaw No. 1175, 2020.

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First and Second readings to the Cultus Lake Park
Commercial Business License Bylaw No. 1176, 2020.

Public Input — Short-Term Rental, Home Based Business and Commercial Business
Licences

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\03 18 2020\1 2020 03 18 regular meeting agenda.docx

o
w



Page 137

Page 157
Page 159

Page 165
Page 167

Page 189

Page 194

AGENDA March 18, 2020
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting Page 4

(9)
(a)

(c)

(d)

(e)

STAFF REPORTS

Purchase of Additional Land - 216C Lakeshore Drive
o Report dated March 18, 2020 from Bonny Bryant Chief Administrative Officer

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the sale and transfer of 34 m2 to Mr. Williams for the
construction of a home on 216C Lakeshore Drive. The price will be set at $1,040.70 per square
meter for a total $35,383.50.

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to enter into an in-kind
agreement with Mr. Williams to improve the present parking lot on Lakeshore Drive by increasing
its capacity and efficiency in exchange for the 34 m2 land sale and transfer as outlined in this
report.

Development Variance Permit 216C Lakeshore Drive
o Report dated March 18, 2020 from Bonny Bryant Chief Administrative Officer
o Report dated February 27, 2020 from Julie Mundy, Planner 1, FVRD

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board supports the issuance of a Development Variance Permit for
216C Lakeshore Drive to reduce the setback distance 0.6m from the dwelling and a Om setback for
the eave/gutter to the interior property line.

Development Variance Permit 29 Lakeshore Drive
e Report dated March 18, 2020 from Bonny Bryant Chief Administrative Officer
o Report dated February 27, 2020 from Julie Mundy, Planner 1, FVRD

Option 1

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board support the Development Variance Permit for 29 Lakeshore
Drive.

Option 2

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board not support the Development Variance Permit for 29 Lakeshore
Drive.

Residential Recycling Report
o Report dated March 18, 2020 from Dave Driediger, Manager of Park Operations

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to provide leaseholders
with a standardized recycling tote in either 120L or 240L capacity as set out in Option 3 below; and

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to fund the purchase of
standardized recycling totes, $17,000 from Operations and $45,000 from Accumulated Surplus.

255 First Avenue Parking Request
o Report dated March 18, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services,
Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\03 18 2020\1 2020 03 18 regular meeting agenda.docx



Page 199

Page 211

Page 217

Page 221

AGENDA March 18, 2020
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting Page 5

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to grant the
parking request at 255 First Avenue to move their designated parking area from First
Avenue to Birch Street, provided;

a) The previously designated parking areas along First Avenue is relinquished; and

b) That if a leaseholder wishes to sign their desighated parking area, the cost and
responsibility to do so be shouldered by the leaseholder and signage is posted on
leased land.

Proposed Designated Smoking Areas

o Report dated March 18, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services,
Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to bring forward a No
Smoking Bylaw No. 1148, 2019 amendment for Board consideration to include designated
smoking areas.

Rescue Jaws of Life
o Report dated March 18, 2020 from Warren Mazuren, Cultus Lake Fire Chief

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the purchase of a new set of Jaws of Life of up to $15,000
the funds be drawn from the Cultus Lake Fire Department Operating Reserve.

Special Event: Cruise for Your Cause
o Report dated March 18, 2020 from Paul Holman, Special Events Coordinator

THAT the Special Event application fee of $100 be waived for the Cruise for Your Cause Special
Event;

THAT the Special Event Park rental fee of $100 be waived for the Cruise for Your Cause Special
Event;

THAT the Board allows the Cruise for Your Cause event to be held in one section of Parking Lot A
or Lot D for 90 minutes on April 25, 2020; and

THAT the fees for parking for the event participants is waived for 90 minutes on April 25, 2020.

Special Event: Cultus Lake Triathlon
o Report dated March 18, 2020 from Paul Holman, Special Events Coordinator

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Cultus Lake Triathlon event from September 17 —
21, 2020, with September 17, 18 and 19 as set-up days, September 20 as race day, and
September 21 as a clean-up day.

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve reducing one rental fee day from $500 to $100 for
Saturday, September 19, 2020.

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\03 18 2020\1 2020 03 18 regular meeting agenda.docx

o
(63}



Page 239

AGENDA March 18, 2020
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting Page 6

(10)

(@)

(11)
(12)

(13)

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve waiving parking fees in Parking Lot A for 20 volunteers
on Sunday, September 20, 2020.

REPORTS BY COMMISSIONERS

Recommendations from the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee

o Report dated March 18, 2020 from Darcy Bauer, Chair, Environmental and Public Areas
Planning Committee

THAT the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee recommend that the Cultus Lake
Park Board approve that the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee plant up to 25
trees, from schedule B, approved tree replacement list, from the Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant
Bylaw No. 1153, 2019, including all amendments, on Main Beach at the corner of Second
Avenue, on both sides of the service road and the lawned area parallel to the west portion of
Parking Lot B.

THAT the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee recommend that the Cultus Lake
Park Board approve that the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee plant up to ten
(10) trees, from schedule B, approved tree replacement list, from the Cultus Lake Park Tree and
Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019, including all amendments, and the placement of up to five (5) large

boulders on the island between Lakeside Beach Club and Sunnyside Boulevard subject to the
Chief Administrative Officer consulting with the tenants of Lakeside Beach Club.

COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION
PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD

ADJOURNMENT

THAT the Regular Meeting of the Cultus Lake Park Board held on March 18, 2020 be adjourned.

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\03 18 2020\1 2020 03 18 regular meeting agenda.docx

o
(o))



CULTUS LAKE PARK BOARD
REGULAR MEETING

MINUTES

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2020
CULTUS LAKE PARK OFFICE BOARDROOM
4165 Columbia Valley Highway, Cultus Lake, BC

Present Commissioner J. Lamb — Chair
Commissioner D. Bauer
Commissioner L. Payeur
Commissioner C. Smit

Staff Chief Administrative Officer — B. Bryant
Manager of Finance — E. Lee
Manager of Park Operations — D. Driediger
Acting Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement — J. Spencer
Executive Assistant — R. Litchfield
Regrets Commissioner D. Renwick — Vice Chair
(1) CALL TO ORDER
The Chair called the meeting to order at 5:58 pm.
(2) RESOLUTION TO PROCEED TO CLOSED MEETING
THAT the meeting be closed to the public to consider matters pursuant to the following sections of
the Community Charter:
Section 90 (1), (d) the security of the property of the municipality.
(3) RECONVENE
The meeting reconvened at 7:00 pm.
(4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA

454720  Moved by: Commissioner Smit Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Agenda for the Regular Meeting of
February 19, 2020; and

THAT all delegations, reports, correspondence and other information set to the Agenda be
received.

CARRIED

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\20200219

o
|



MINUTES February 19, 2020
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting Page 2

(5) ADOPTION OF MINUTES
4548-20  Moved by: Commissioner Bauer Seconded by: Commissioner Smit

(a) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board adopt the minutes of the Regular Meeting held
January 15, 2020.

CARRIED
(6) BYLAWS

(a) Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Requlations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment

Bylaw No. 1169, 2020

o Report dated February 19, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Acting Manager of Visitor Services,
Accommodations, and Bylaw Enforcement

e Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment
Bylaw No. 1169, 2020

o Redline Version, Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019
Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020

4549-20  Moved by: Commissioner Smit Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third readings to the Cultus Lake
Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1169,
2020.

CARRIED

(b) Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw
No. 1171, 2020
o Report dated February 19, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Acting Manager of Visitor
Services, Accommodations, and Bylaw Enforcement
e Attachment 1
o Attachment 2

4550-20 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer Seconded by: Commissioner Smit

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind the Third reading of the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw
Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1171, 2020.

CARRIED
455120 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer Seconded by: Commissioner Smit

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended to the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw
Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1171, 2020.

CARRIED

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2020\02 19 2020

o
o



MINUTES February 19, 2020
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting Page 3

4552-20  Moved by: Commissioner Bauer Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw
No. 1171, 2020 be amended by removing and replacing Schedule A-14 Cultus Lake Park Parking
and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019.

CARRIED
(i) Cultus Lake Park Board Commissioners Remuneration Bylaw No. 1163, 2019

Amendment Bylaw No. 1172, 2020
¢ Report dated January 15, 2020 from Bonny Bryant, Chief Administrative Officer

4553-20 Moved by: Commissioner Smit Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Board
Commissioners Remuneration Bylaw No. 1163, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1172, 2020.

CARRIED
(7) CONSENT AGENDA

2019 Fourth Quarter Reports

- Strategic Priorities

- Finance

- Lions Parking

- Public Works

- Campground and Cabins

- Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement
- Fire Department

- Lease Assignment

4554-20 Moved by: Commissioner Smit Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the 2019 Fourth Quarter reports for information.
CARRIED
(8) STAFF REPORTS

(a) Recycling Collection Report
e Report dated February 19, 2020 from Dave Driediger, Manager of Park Operations

4555-20 Moved by: Commissioner Smit Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to defer this back to
staff for further information and options for totes.

CARRIED
S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2020\02 19 2020

o
[(e]



MINUTES February 19, 2020
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting Page 4

4556-20 Moved by: Commissioner Smit Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to amend the
residential waste collection budget to cover the one time, $6,179 purchase of 512 - 9L glass
recycling containers; and to amend the budget to fund them from Accumulated Surplus.

MOTION DEFEATED

The Board noted that glass recycling will be the responsibility of the homeowner. Chair Lamb
suggested that if residents have any concerns to please contact the Park office.

4557-20 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to amend the
commercial leaseholder waste collection budget to cover the additional $4,667 annual cost of
waste disposal; and to fund the additional costs by adding this additional charge to the
commercial lease annual garbage fees.

CARRIED
4558-20 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to amend the Public
Works organic waste collection budget by $960 annually to cover additional waste disposal
costs funded with the current operational surplus.

CARRIED
(8) COMMMISSIONERS REPORTS

Commissioner Bauer noted that though the Environmental and Public Areas Planning
Committee has not yet had their first meeting, volunteer members were removing some
blackberry plants the past weekend. He also noted that he attended the Fraser Valley Regional
Districts Public Hearing for the Cannabis Zoning Regulation. He noted that production and
dispensary will not be permitted in in Electoral Area E and H.

Commissioner Payeur noted that he attended the Celebration of Life at the Evergreen Hall for
our fire fighter Connor Sloan, who passed away tragically on Christmas Eve. He noted that the
family was supported by many friends, co-workers and the attendance was standing room only.
He sent the family condolences from the Board and staff.

Chair Lamb noted that the Fire Department is holding a fundraiser for PTSD in honor of Conner
Sloan where they will climb 48 stories on February 23, 2020.

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2020\02 19 2020

o
=
o



MINUTES February 19, 2020
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting Page 5

(9)

COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

Colleen Rogozinski, Cultus Lake Community Association inquired if there has been an update
on the sewer?

Chair Lamb noted that there has not been an update with respect to FVRD and the sewer
system. He also noted that there has been no engagement between the two parties.

Question of the Month?

Colleen Rogozinski, Cultus Lake Community Association inquired on the implementation of a
Smoke-Free Park and noted that it is welcomed by many, however one of the unintended
consequences of the initiative has been that people have been smoking in secluded areas
(among the trees and wooded area) and in the residential areas. As a result, this has increased
the pollution (butts being left on the ground) and potentially increasing the fire hazard within the
park. She inquired if the Board has given any consideration to create designated smoking areas
to accommodate smokers?

Chair Lamb noted that it will be placed on a Regular Meeting Agenda with a staff recommendation
for the Board to review. He noted that the Board has discussed this in the past and the resolution
to allow designated smoking areas had been defeated. He noted that in the past we tried to
educate people on the Smoking Bylaw and did not apply fines, however going forward he noted
that we do plan on managing this differently this year.

PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD

Q: Rick Williamson, First Ave. inquired on the amendment to the parking and in the definition of
“Store” states not to park more than 72 hours or three (3) days, he noted that neither of these
stipulate in a row and also inquire on how this will be enforced?

A: Jacquie Spencer, Acting Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw
Enforcement noted that staff are trying to stop people from moving from parking spot to
parking spot. She noted that it is either 72 hours, or not more than three (3) days in a
calendar month, not more than 3 days in a row.

A: Chair Lamb referred this back to staff to clarify on ways to manage this.

Q: Pat Ferdinand’s, Maple St. provided the Board with an example of a bylaw enforcement
issue in a high-density area in the Lower Mainland where there was a parking restriction of
72-hours. He noted that it was difficult for the officer to manage and noted that this created a
lot of friction between neighbors and the community. He inquired under 11.2(b) seasonal
maintenance for loading and cleaning and has asked what the reason was for this
concession.

A: Chair Lamb noted that Board wants to be reasonable in being able to allow those that may
need to clean their boats, load their RV’s and noted that some may not have the areas or
space to do so. He clarified that if parking is contained on the lease lot, there is not an issue.
He referred questions on the Blvd parking to staff for consideration.

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2020\02 19 2020

o
=
-



MINUTES February 19, 2020
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting Page 6

(11) ADJOURNMENT
4559-20 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur

THAT the Regular Meeting of the Cultus Lake Park Board held on February 19, 2020 be
adjourned at 8:07 pm.

CARRIED

| hereby certify the preceding to be a true and correct account of the meeting of the Cultus
Lake Park Board held February 19, 2020.

Joe Lamb Bonny Bryant
Chair Chief Administrative Officer

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2020\02 19 2020

o
=
N






















































o
o



Cultus Lake Park

SUNNYSIDE CAMPGROUND BYLAW
Bylaw No. 1165, 2020

A Bylaw to regulate Sunnyside Campground.

Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park
Board to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 260 — Enforcement Powers of
the Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 —
Payment of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides
that fines and other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park
bylaw must be paid to the Park.

Every person who offends against any of the provisions of this Bylaw or who suffers or permits
any act to be done in contravention or in violation of any of the provisions of this Bylaw, or who
neglects to do or refrains from doing anything required to be done by any of the provisions of this
Bylaw, or who does any act or thing which violates any of the provisions of this Bylaw, will be in
breach of this Bylaw, and will be liable to the fees as outlined in Schedule A of this Bylaw and
the fines and provisions as outlined in the “Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw
No. 1140, 2019.

The Cultus Lake Park Board in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. TITLE
This Bylaw may be cited as “Cultus Lake Park Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No.
1165, 2020.”

2. INTERPRETATION

2.1 Words or phrases defined in the British Columbia Interpretation Act, Motor Vehicle
Act, Local Government Act, Community Charter, or any successor legislation, will
have the same meaning when used in this Bylaw unless otherwise defined in this
Bylaw.

Page 1 of 23

o
-



2.2

DEFINITONS OF TERMS

“Barbeque” means a devise that cooks food by applying heat from below, fueled
by propane.

“Board” means the elected Board for Cultus Lake Park.
“Boulevard” means that portion of space between the road edges on median strips

or Islands.

“Bylaw Compliance Enforcement Officer” means the persons duly appointed by
the Board as such and will include any Peace Officer.

“CAO” means the Chief Administrative Officer; a position appointed by the Board.
“Camper” means any person included in site occupancy.
“Camperized Van” means a van equipped with beds and cooking equipment.

“Campground” means Sunnyside Campground including all public areas,
individual sites, campground buildings, foreshore, beaches, wharves and any other
area within Sunnyside Campground.

“Campground Buildings” means buildings including but are not limited to:
washrooms, recreation hall, laundry room, campground store, outhouses, offices
and storage buildings.

“Campground Staff” means any person employed by Cultus Lake Park.

“Camping Stove” a portable stove powered by propane, butane gas canisters, or
any other means, designed to be used for cooking while outdoors.

“Charcoal/Coal” means a carbonaceous material obtained by heating wood or
other organic substances in the absence of air.

“Dangerous Animal” means any animal that is or is deemed to be potentially
harmful to humans by nature, aggression, venom, toxins, or size and that may
require specifically designed, secure enclosures to ensure safekeeping.

“Designate” means a person appointed by the Campground Administrator.

“Extra Seasonal Vehicle Pass” means the additional adhesive seasonal vehicle
permit provided by Sunnyside Campground, for a fee, to be affixed for the duration
of the season to a specific vehicle as registered with the campground.

“Foreshore” means the area under the Lease Agreement from the Ministry of
Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations within Cultus Lake Park along the
lakeshore and 100 meters or 328 feet into the lake from the high water mark.

“Guest” means any person included in site occupancy.

“Human Transporter” means any battery powered or motorized equipment such
as a Segway.

o
N

Page 2 of 23 Vol



“Owner” includes any person who owns, has in their custody or control, or harbors
any pet, or is an occupant of a leased premise of where a pet is kept.

“Park Staff” means any person employed by Cultus Lake Park.

“Person” means a natural person, a company, corporation, partnership, firm,
association, society, or party and the heirs, executors, administrators, personal or
other legal representatives of a person to whom the context can apply according to
law.

“Public Areas” means any street, laneway, avenue, way, drive, boulevard,
sidewalk, driveway, beaches, wharves, field, campground building or structure,
playground or such premises as the Campground Administrator may from time to
time designate.

“Recreational Vehicle” means a motor vehicle or trailer equipped with living space
and amenities found at home.

“Registered Camper” means any person(s) the reservation information states the
site is registered to.

“Season” means the seasonal camping season and will be from the second Sunday
in April until the 30™ of September of each calendar year.

“Seasonal Vehicle Pass” means the adhesive seasonal vehicle permit provided by
Sunnyside Campground, to be affixed for the duration of the season to a specific
vehicle as registered with the campground.

“Smoker Units” means an apparatus for cooking at low temperatures in a
controlled, smoky environment, powered by a wide variety of fuels, including
electricity, propane or natural gas, wood, charcoal and pellets.

“Unmanned Aerial Vehicle” A powered, aerial vehicle that does not carry a human
operator, uses aerodynamic forces to provide vehicle lift, can fly autonomously or
be piloted remotely, can be expendable or recoverable and can carry a lethal or
nonlethal payload. Commonly known as a UAV or drone.

“Unsightly” means in addition to its common dictionary meaning and regardless of
the condition of other properties in the neighborhood, will include property having
any one or more of the following characteristics:

(a) the storage, location or accumulation visible to a person standing on a public
highway or on nearby property, or in a building or structure situated on a public
highway or nearby property, of filth, rubbish, graffiti or any other discarded
materials;

(b) the untidy storage, location or placement of building materials on a site where
construction is not taking place, except where they cannot be seen from a public
highway or from nearby property, or from a building or structure situated on a
public highway or nearby property;

o
w

Page 3 of 23 Voo



2.3

24

(c) landscaping or vegetation that is dead or characterized by uncontrolled growth
or lack of maintenance, or is damaged,;

(d) any other similar conditions of disrepair, dilapidation, or deterioration;
(e) any unlicensed or unregistered vehicles in a state of disrepair or disassembly.

“Vehicle” means a device in, on or by which a person or thing is or may be
transported or drawn on a highway, but does not include a device designed to be
moved by human power, a device used exclusively on stationary rails or tracks or a
motor assisted cycle and for the purpose of this Bylaw will include boat or other
trailers; and will include the meaning designated to a vehicle in the British Columbia
Motor Vehicle Act.

“Visitor” means any person visiting a registered camper.
“Wharf” means a structure on the shore extending out into the foreshore.

In this Bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires, the singular will include the
plural and the masculine includes the feminine gender.

The headings contained in this Bylaw are for convenience only and are not to be
construed as defining, or in any way limiting, the scope or the intent of the provisions
of this Bylaw.

RULES AND REGULATIONS

All campers and visitors in Sunnyside Campground are subject to the provisions
as outlined in the Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 1165, 2020.

NOISE REGULATION

Exemptions

4.1

4.2

Notwithstanding anything contained herein, no person will be guilty of an
infraction of this Bylaw while:

a) operating or in charge of Fire Department, Police, Ambulance and Park Staff
vehicles while in the execution of their duties.

b) operating any motor vehicle, machinery or other apparatus or thing during an
emergency or for a public purpose or in furtherance of the public interest
including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, water main and
sewer main break repairs.

c) performing works of an emergency nature for the preservation or protection
of life, health or property, provided that, the responsibility will be on the person
performing the work to show cause that the work was of an emergency
nature.

General Prohibitions

Page 4 of 23 034



a) No person will make, cause, or permit to be made or caused, any noise in or
on any public area in the campground which disturbs or tends to disturb the
quiet, peace, rest, enjoyment, comfort or convenience of any person or
persons in the vicinity of that place.

b) No person being the registered camper of a campsite will allow or permit such
campsite to be used so that noise or sound which occurs on or emanates
from, disturbs or tends to disturb the quiet, peace, rest, enjoyment, comfort or
convenience of any person or persons on the same site or in the
neighborhood or vicinity of that site.

c) In terms of this Bylaw, quiet hours will be maintained between 11:00 pm and 7:00
am when the campground will be free of any excessive noise that could disrupt
the peaceful enjoyment of the campground. No person will make unnecessary
or continuous noise during these quiet hours.

4.3 Public Address Systems

a) Public address and/or sound systems are not permitted in the campground
without written permission from the Campground Administrator.

4.4 Motor Vehicle Noise

a) The following noises are considered unnecessary, objectionable or liable to
disturb the quiet, peace, rest, enjoyment, comfort or convenience of campers
and visitors:

i. the squeal of a tire on a road surface made by a motor vehicle which is
accelerating, stopping or changing direction;

ii. aloud, roaring or explosive sound emitted by a motor vehicle within the
campground;

iii. the amplified sound of a radio, CD-player, or other sound playback
device or amplification equipment, or the sound of a musical
instrument, that emanates from a motor vehicle and can be easily
heard by someone outside the motor vehicle;

iv. the sound of an automobile security system which is made, either
continuously or intermittently, for a period exceeding three (3) minutes,
or made more than three (3) times in a 24-hour period;

v. the sound of a horn or other warning device on a motor vehicle used
for any purpose other than as an audible warning incidental to the safe
operation of the motor vehicle.

4.5 Vehicles Idling and Air Quality

a) It will be an offence to idle or otherwise run continuously for more than three
(3) minutes at the same location, except:

i. a vehicle containing equipment that must be operated inside or in
association with a vehicle;

o
(63}

Page 5 of 23 Uso



ii. a vehicle serving as a facility for taking measurements or making
observations by or on behalf of the campground, public utility, police, fire
or ambulance.

4.6 Specific Prohibitions

Without limiting the generality of subsection 4.2 herein:

a)

d)

No person will play or operate any radio, stereophonic equipment or other
instrument or any apparatus for the production or amplification of sound either in
or on a campsite or on any road, laneway, wharf, foreshore or other public area
in such a manner as to disturb the quiet, peace, rest, enjoyment, comfort or
convenience of any person or persons in the neighborhood or vicinity of those
premises or place

No person being the registered camper of a campsite will allow or permit such
campsite to be used by a person or persons for playing or operating any radio or
stereophonic equipment or other instrument or other apparatus for the production
or amplification of sound in such a manner as to disturb the quiet, peace, rest,
enjoyment, comfort or convenience of any person or persons in the neighborhood
or vicinity of said campsite.

No person will own, keep or harbor any animal which by its barking, cries or
sounds unduly disturbs the peace, quiet, rest or tranquility of the surrounding
neighborhood or of persons in the vicinity.

No person may operate, or cause, suffer or permit the operation of, any motorized
lawn-grooming or garden equipment in the campground between the hours of
7:00 pm and 9:00 am, with the exception of campground and Park staff.

No person will create a nuisance or disturbance upon any portion of a road,
laneway or other public area by participating in a fight or other similar physical
confrontation between consenting or non-consenting persons. Failure to comply
will result in fines and/or eviction.

GATE CLOSURE AND VISITOR DEPARTURE

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Seasonal campers will have the option of card-swipe entry for the electronic gate
outside of gatehouse operational hours.

Day visitors will be required to leave the campground by 11:00 pm every day.

Overnight visitors will be required to leave the campground by 11:00 am on the
date of visitor pass expiry.

No visitors are permitted entry after 10:00 pm.

CAMPERS AND VISITORS

o
(o))

Page 6 of 23 Us0



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Campsite fees include two adults and multiple children.

Extra guests 19 years and older will be considered adults and charged an
additional fee. Adult occupancy is not permitted to exceed four (4) per campsite.

It is the responsibility of the registered camper to ensure that their visitor(s) comply
with all requirements of this Bylaw.

The registered camper will be held responsible and accountable for their conduct
and the conduct of their guest(s) and visitor(s). Unacceptable conduct will be subject
to section 23 [Evictions] of this Bylaw at the discretion of the Campground
Administrator and/or Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw
Enforcement and in consultation with the CAO.

In the event that a registered camper refuses to pay any outstanding charges,
campground staff will prohibit the removal of camping materials or unit from the
campground and/or be subject to eviction.

Belligerent or disrespectful behavior will not be tolerated anywhere in the
campground. Violators will be subject to fines and/or eviction.

The Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw Compliance
Enforcement Officers, Sunnyside Campground Administrator or designate, and
Sunnyside Campground Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement Officers reserve the
right to refuse admittance to any person.

PUBLIC AREAS

7.1

7.2

It is prohibited for any person to operate an Unmanned Aerial Vehicle (commonly
known as a Drone) within the campground.

Persons 18 years and under must be accompanied by an adult when off their site
after 11:00 pm. Fines will be applied per attendance and may result in eviction.

7.3 All Playgrounds close at dusk.
VEHICLES
8.1 Day Visitor Vehicles: There is a limit of two (2) day visitor vehicles per site. Each

8.2

8.3

8.4

vehicle may be occupied by two (2) adult visitor(s) and children. Additional fees will
apply.

Overnight Camping Visitor Vehicles: There is a limit of one (1) overnight camping
visitor vehicles per site, providing that the maximum overnight site occupancy of four
(4) adults will not be exceeded. Additional fees will apply.

Parking is prohibited on the Beach Drive Boulevard, unless as designated otherwise
by Park signage.

Operation of all vehicles in the campground must comply with the Motor Vehicle

o
Yy

Page 7 of 23 Vsl



10.

11.

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

Act.

Motorcycles are considered vehicles for the purposes of the compliance and
enforcement of this Bylaw and are required to be registered prior to entry to the
campground.

All vehicles must obey all posted speed limits.

Unlicensed vehicles or low powered vehicles are prohibited in the campground which
include but are not limited to electric bikes, mopeds and scooters, pocket bikes,
mini bikes, children-sized ride-on vehicles, human transporters, motorized scooters
and skateboard, dirt bikes, all-terrain vehicles and golf carts, without prior written
permission of the Campground Administrator.

All registered campers and visitors are subject to sections 184 and 194 of the Motor
Vehicle Act with regard to wearing protective helmets.

Vehicles must be parked in such a way as to not impede the flow of traffic on any
road or laneway.

LIQUOR

The Liguor Control and Licensing Act will be strictly enforced.

9.1

9.2

Open liquor and/or alcoholic beverages are prohibited in all public areas, beaches,
campground buildings, playgrounds, road ways and green spaces. Fines will be
levied per attendance.

Open liquor and/or alcoholic beverages may only be consumed on individual
campsites.

AGE RESTRICTION

Persons under 21 years of age may not be permitted to occupy any campsite unless
accompanied by the registered camper, aged 21 years of age or older.

PETS

11.1 Pets must always be secured or leashed and under the control of the handler.

11.2 Pets must not be left unattended.

11.3 Pet(s) that repeatedly disturb the quiet enjoyment of campers may be required to be

removed from the campground by their custodian and/or the registered occupant
of the site the pet(s) is associated with and will be subject to fines per attendance.

11.4 All pets must have ID tags including owner or custodial contact information attached

to collars.

o
o

Page 8 of 23 Uso



12.

13.

11.5 Seasonal pets must have ID tags including the registered campsite number(s).

11.6 Refer to Cultus Lake Park Animal Control and Regulations Bylaw No. 1142,
2019 Schedule “C” for off-leash areas and dog swim areas.

11.7 Pets are not allowed on the beaches, on the wharves, in the water, (except for in
the dog swim areas) or in the playground areas.

11.8 Handlers of pets will be responsible for all clean-up and disposal of their pet's
feces into a garbage receptacle.

11.9 It is prohibited for any person to own, keep or harbor any dangerous animal,
snakes, lizards or crocodilians within Sunnyside Campground.

PLANTS AND TREES
12.1 Itis prohibited to cut, trim or damage plants and/or trees, including fallen trees.
12.2 Use of nails, screws or any material which could damage a tree is prohibited.

12.3 No person will plant any tree, plant or flower in the ground within the campground,
excluding planter boxes and raised garden beds that had been approved by the
Park in 2010. Replacement of these previously approved planter boxes and
raised garden beds are not allowed without written permission from the
Campground Administrator.

12.4 No person will place or store any planter or planting pots outside of the property
pins of their seasonal camping site.

12.5 Violators will be subject to fines and/or eviction.

ELECTRICITY

13.1 All lights are required to be turned off during daylight hours and when retiring for
the night.

13.2 Air conditioners are required to be turned off when the site is not occupied for
twelve (12) hours or more.

13.3 One string of Energy Efficient exterior lights, 15m/50’ is permitted per site and is
to be turned off overnight and/or when the site is not occupied.

13.4 One Energy Efficient 5.0 cubic feet exterior refrigerator displaying Energy Guide
rating sticker is permitted per seasonal site. The refrigerator must be child-
proofed with an appropriate locking device. Seasonal campers must pay for a
decal at time of registration which must be clearly displayed on the outside of the
refrigerator.

o
[(o]

Page 9 of 23 VoY



14.

15.

16.

17.

13.5 Freezers, electric ranges and generators are not permitted.

13.6 Each seasonal site is entitled to one 30 amperage electrical outlet. Any abuse of
electrical usage or tampering with electrical outlets or boxes will be subject to
fines and/or eviction.

13.7 No person will install additional breakers or breaker box systems off an existing
electrical outlet.

13.8 No person will block access to a breaker box.

GARBAGE, RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL OF PROPANE BOTTLES

14.1 No person will remove any recycling or waste from any disposal or recycling
receptacle or remove any recyclable item from any site other than their own or
any Campground area, except for campground staff.

14.2 No person is permitted to solicit any recycling material from any other person in
the Campground.

14.3 All campers are required to remove all used or unused propane bottles (white
and green) upon departure from the campground. It is prohibited to deposit or
discard any propane bottles anywhere in Sunnyside Campground, including
trash bins.

SITE CONDITION

It is the responsibility of the registered camper to maintain the overall appearance of
their site to ensure it does not become unsightly in the opinion of the campground
administrator.

INFORMATION

16.1 To protect the privacy of campers, staff will not release any information about
Sunnyside Campground registered customers. If campers expect guests, it is
required that they ensure that the guests know the seasonal campers’ site
number and the name of the person under which it is registered, or entry will be
denied.

16.2 Phone Messages: Only messages of extreme urgency will be delivered to
individual sites.

CAMPFIRES AND FIRE BANS

17.1 Open burning wood fires are prohibited in the campground except on registered
sites. Fires must be in a container, apparatus or physical construct that is capable
of controlling the spread of the fire such as the fire rings provided by the campground
and must not be left unattended and an adult must be present at all time. The only
material permitted to be burned in fire pits, except for those units as approved in

Page 10 of 23 040



18.

19.

17.2

17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

17.8

17.9

17.2, is untreated wood.

CSA-approved free-standing propane and natural gas fire pits, barbeques and
camp stoves are permitted on registered sites.

Smoker units are prohibited in the campground.

Flames must be kept low six (6) inches (15 cm) in height and a safe distance
from any tree, building, vehicle and combustible structure or any type of material
that may be subject to combustion.

All propane or natural gas units are prohibited on the wharves and the beach.

The use of charcoal, coal or briquettes is prohibited within the public areas of the
campground.

The use of campfires is permitted daily from 7:00 am to 1:00 pm and from 5:00 pm
to 11:00 pm.

Camp fire regulations may be relaxed during inclement weather with the approval
of the Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement, or
designate.

Campfires must not be left unattended. An adult must be present at all times if a fire
is being used.

17.10 Materials prohibited from burning include but are not limited to: garbage, rubber,

17.11

17.12

plastics, hazardous materials, treated, painted or stained wood and/or petroleum
products not expressly approved in this section.

In the event of a Fire Ban all fire ban regulations must be strictly adhered to.
Please refer to the Cultus Lake Park Burning Conditions, Restrictions and Fire
Ban Bylaw No. 1144, 2019 for Bylaws pertaining to fire bans within Cultus Lake
Park.

Barbeque and Charcoal/Coal units are prohibited on wharves and beach areas.

WATERCRAFT

Please refer to the Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 for
Bylaws relating to watercraft, boating, moorage and the foreshore.

SEASONAL OCCUPANCY

19.1

Only the registered camper(s) may use the site:

a) Subletting or assignment of seasonal sites is not permitted and will be
subject to eviction.

b) Change of site occupancy name is allowed only between spouses and
requires the consent of the Campground Administrator.

Page 11 of 23 041



19.2 Site Usage

a)

b)

Seasonal campers are permitted, per site: one (1) recreational vehicle unit plus
one (1) tent for immediate family only and as the seasonal site size permits
in consideration of section 19.3 (b) of this Bylaw, below; or

Two (2) tents for immediate family only if no recreational vehicle unit is on
site.

19.3 Vehicle Passes

a)

b)

f)

9)

h)

Two (2) seasonal vehicle passes are provided at no additional cost for
each site. It is the responsibility of the seasonal camper to ensure
adequate parking is available on site in consideration of the recreational
vehicle unit or trailer size and any other tent(s), boat trailer, shed or utility
trailer the seasonal camper place on site.

A maximum of two (2) extra seasonal vehicle passes may be purchased;
the recipient(s) of which must be authorized, in writing, by the registered
seasonal camper, who assumes responsibility for the authorized pass
holder’s conduct. Each seasonal vehicle pass includes one adult and children.
Additional adults must register at the gatehouse and pay applicable fees
overnight visiting.

Seasonal passes will not be issued to any camping unit including, but not
limited to, truck and camper, camperized van or recreational vehicle.

Limited parking spaces may be available for rent by the campground and
may be purchased for additional fees and will be subject to availability at the
discretion of the Campground Administrator.

A motorcycle is considered a vehicle for the purposes of parking passes. A pass
may be issued in respect to licensed motorcycles or motor scooters provided
that the vehicles are parked on the seasonal site or in the additional parking
space(s) as provided by section 19.3 (a) and 19.3 (d).

In order to obtain passes, proper identification (e.g. driver's license) and
registered seasonal camper’s signature will be required at the time such
passes are issued and are to be affixed on the vehicle windshield
immediately.

It is prohibited to affix passes to unregistered vehicle(s). The pass will be
required to be re-purchased by the registered occupant from the remaining
available passes. If no available passes remain, the registered occupant will
be required to pay daily or nightly vehicle fees.

In the situation of a registered vehicle being sold or a windshield being
replaced, the old pass must be removed and exchanged for a replacement
pass, at no additional charge. If the old pass is not provided for exchange, a
new pass must be purchased and will be subject to availability.

Seasonal camper entry after gate closure is permitted via keycard swipe

Page 12 of 23 042



20.

system in the pass holders’ lane at the entrance of the Campground. A
deposit is required for the issue of each card, which will be refunded when
the card is returned to the Campground gatehouse staff prior to September
30 at 12:00 pm. If a card is lost, stolen or damaged the deposit will be
retained and a further deposit is required to issue a replacement card. Fees
and deposit amounts are outlined in Schedule A of this Bylaw.

SITE SET-UP AND ALTERATIONS

20.1 Site set-up and alterations require prior written approval from the Campground
Administrator and Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw
Enforcement and must meet all Bylaw requirements.

20.2 Approved site alterations expire at the end of each season.

20.3 Wood decks are permitted and must remain within site boundaries and must be
removed at the end of each season. Poured concrete decks and other permanent
deck structures are prohibited except for seasonal campers that have been
grandfathered in 2010. If the grandfathered deck structures are deemed unsafe,
by Park Staff, they will be removed, and the site will be brought back to its natural
state.

20.4 Sheds and Utility Trailers: One shed (must not exceed 4 feet wide x 8 feet long x 7
feet high) or utility trailer (must not exceed 14 feet long) is permitted per site and
must be located within the site boundaries. The exterior must be finished and used
for the sole purpose of storage. Sheds or utility trailers are subject to the Manager
of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement, or designate,
approval.

20.5 Tarps must remain within the campsite boundary and must be used as roof
coverings only. Tarps must not be secured to trees in any way that could harm or
damage them. Orange tarps are not permitted to be used on seasonal sites.

20.6 Fences require the Campground Administrator’s written approval, and if approved,
must not be a height greater than 1.2m (4 feet). Fencing must abide by the
following:

a) fences along a roadway will not be outside of the campsite property
lines and must be setback two (2) feet from the roadway;

b) picket fences with pointed tops are prohibited;
c) fencing contiguous to campground washrooms may be solid and 6 feet tall;

d) all fencing must allow persons from outside the campsite to be able to clearly
see into the campsite without an obstructed view;

e) no solid fencing is permitted and

Page 13 of 23 043



i. must be a non-permanent and removable wooden, wire, plastic or
Plexiglas barrier that is one type with a width of less than six inches
and a height of no greater than 4 feet.

20.7 All portable carport, gazebo and metal structures must be secured and/or
anchored to the ground.

20.8 No landscape or construction materials will be allowed into the campground without
an approved Site Set-up / Alteration form signed by the Campground
Administrator and/or Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw
Enforcement.

20.9 One (1) picnic table per site is supplied and must not be damaged or altered in any
way (including painting). Any coverings protecting or attached to the table must be
removed upon departure.

20.10 It is the sole responsibility of the seasonal camper or registered occupant to
ensure that any deck built on-site meets the current British Columbia Building
Code and has been approved by the Campground Administrator.

20.11 On-site inspection by Bylaw Compliance Enforcement and Park staff may
occur to ensure Bylaw and Building Code Compliance.

20.12 A person will not add any structure to or beside any recreational vehicle, travel
trailer or camper other than a deck.

20.13 No accessary buildings or structures are permitted on a campsite or within the
campground unless approved by the Campground Administrator.

20.14 No person will interfere with the operations of the campground, including but not
limited to, tampering with electrical, water, sewer or site boundary lines.

SATELLITE DISH/ANTENNAE

211 Satellite dishes must be installed within the perimeter of the seasonal site and
can only extend beyond the seasonal site with prior written permission from the
Campground Administrator. Permission will be denied should any parts of the
satellite including, but not limited to, cable, dish, wiring, etc. cross over or under
any roadway or pathway.

21.2 Satellite dishes or any part thereof must not be attached to utility poles or
Sunnyside Campground structures.

21.3 Satellite dishes attached to trees must be attached in such away so as to not
harm a tree in any manner. Examples include: bungee cords, zap straps or
satellite poles.

21.4 All Satellite dish equipment must be removed at the end of season.

21.5 Satellite dishes in violation of this section are subject to removal without notice.

Page 14 of 23 044



22.

23.

21.6

Sunnyside Campground is not responsible for any theft of satellite signal or
piracy of media content.

DEPARTURE PROCEDURES

221

22.2

223

224

22,5

22.6

22.7

Sites and fire pits must be cleaned before departure.

Ropes and other tying devices which are attached to trees must be removed
before departure.

All building materials, furniture, appliances and any other large items must be
removed from the campground at the expense of the seasonal camper. None of
these items are to be left at or within waste removal bins.

Any unsecured items such as, but not limited to, cement blocks and bricks must
be removed from sites prior to the departure date. All costs incurred by
Sunnyside Campground for the removal and disposal of items will be charged
to the registered site occupant, plus 25 percent for overhead costs.

Departure time for seasonal camping is no later than 12:00 noon on
September 30.

Failure to comply with these procedures may jeopardize future site
occupancy.

A clean-up fee will be applied to registered campers whose site is not cleaned on
departure. The clean-up fee will be added as a site charge levied in the following

year to the returning seasonal camper.

EVICTIONS

23.1 In the event a camper fails to abide by any section of this Bylaw, the camper may
be subject to the following:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Seasonal camper: be evicted from the campground and given forty-eight (48)
hours to remove all personal property.

For a seasonal camper who is evicted, any refund will be calculated by using
the overnight full hook-up rates currently in effect applied to the total number of
registered nights prior to the eviction departure date and is subject to a two week
period for campground staff to find seasonal occupancy for the site. The number
of unregistered nights, to a maximum of 14, will be added to the number of
registered nights of the evicted seasonal prior to calculating the refund.

Overnight campers will be required to leave the campground and remove all
personal property immediately.

A seasonal or daily camper who has been evicted will not be permitted back

Page 15 of 23 045



to Sunnyside Campground for two (2) years and only with approval of the
Campground Administrator. If the Campground Administrator grants approval
for a seasonal camper to return to the Campground, the individual will be
placed on the wait list.

e) Evictions will be at the sole discretion of the Campground Administrator and/or
Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations, and Bylaw Compliance
Enforcement in consultation with the CAO.

24. SEASONAL NON-RENEWAL

241

24.2

243

Annually, registered seasonal camper’s site files will be reviewed and may be
subject to non-renewal of the seasonal site if one or more of the following
criteria is applicable:

a) Multiple warnings and notice on several occasions during the past season
or previous seasons relating to:

i. Belligerent/disrespectful behavior

ii. Documentation of reoccurring issues of prohibitive behavior over one
Or more seasons;

iii. Written or verbal warning by Bylaw Compliance Enforcement Officer
throughout the season relating to noise, which are documented in shift
patrol logs;

iv. Other Bylaw infractions.

b) Occurrences where the attendance of the RCMP is required to attend

(including but not limited to: domestic disturbances; physical violence; public
intoxication; belligerent behavior; or threats against campground staff).

c) Abusive/disrespectful or threatening behavior or language towards
campground staff.

d) Nonpayment of campground fees, by the applicable deadline.

Notice of non-renewal may be given at any time.

Occupants of sites that are subject to non-renewal will not be permitted back
to Sunnyside Campground for two (2) years and only with the approval of
the Campground Administrator and/or Manager of Visitor Services,
Accommodations, and Bylaw Compliance Enforcement and CAO.

Page 16 of 23 046



25.

26.

27.

28.

FEES AND FINES

25.1 All campers and visitors in Sunnyside Campground are subject to the fees noted in
Schedule A of this Bylaw and the fines and provisions as outlined in Cultus Lake
Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, and Schedule A-11 of said
bylaw.

25.2 Each occurrence or day that a contravention of the provisions of this Bylaw exists
or is permitted to exist will constitute a separate offence.

SEVERABILITY

If any part of this Bylaw is for any reason held invalid by a Court or competent jurisdiction,
the invalid portion will be severed and the severance will not affect the validity of the
remainder.

REPEAL

Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 1151, 2019 and all amendments are repealed upon
adoption.

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Bylaw will come into force and effect upon its adoption.
READ A FIRST TIME THIS 15 DAY OF JANUARY, 2020
READ A SECOND TIME THIS 15 DAY OF JANUARY, 2020
READ A THIRD TIME THIS 15 DAY OF JANUARY, 2020

ADOPTED this XX day of XXXX, 2020

Joe Lamb, Chair Bonny Bryant
Cultus Lake Park Board Chief Administrative Officer

o
~

Page 17 of 23



| HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Sunnyside
Campground Bylaw No. 1165, 2020

Chief Administrative Officer

Page 18 of 23 048



Schedule A

Fees

Administration fee (charged to seasonal and waitlist refunds)...........cccccceeeiiiiiiiii . $30.00

Annual on-site refrigerator fee: upto 5.0 cuft...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii .. $45.00

Annual on-site refrigerator fee: over 5.0 cu ft. (grandfathered)...............coocciieieniinnnen, $90.00
BUOY rental (WEEKIY)......ooeeiee ettt ettt e e see e smeeenneas $75.00
BUOY rental (DaAilY).........cooeeeiiie ettt et et a et a e e $15.00
Cancellation fee (if cancelled 7 days prior to arrival)............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiie e $13.00
Cost of rectifying non-approved site alterations .................c.cooeeeets Actual Hourly rate + 25%

overhead + materials + other related costs

Cost of removal of unauthorized items disposed of.........ccccccoviiiiiinnneen. Actual Hourly rate + 25%
overhead + materials

Cost of replacement tree due to willful damage.............................. Actual Hourly rate + 25%
overhead + materials (mature tree up to 14 feet in height)

Cost of seasonal site Clean-up........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiicic e Actual Hourly rate + 25%
overhead + other related costs

D2}V 11 (o) R $11.00
Extra seasonal parking spot and/or boat storage...........ccccoovecciiieieiiie e, $100.00 per season
Extra seasonal vehicle pass (Maximum 2)...........coooeriiiiiiiiiiree e $50.00 each
Full hookup — daily — Sunday to Thursday Iow S€ason ..........cccccceeiiiiiiiiiieeeees $46.00
Full hookup — daily Friday and Saturday — [ow S€ason............cccceuuvveviiiriiieiiiiieieeeieeeeeeeeeeeee $47.00
Full hookup — daily long weekend — IOW SEaSON ... $55.00
Full hookup — daily Sunday through Thursday — high season..............ccccvvvveeevieviieeeieeeieeee. $51.00
Full hookup — daily Friday and Saturday — high S€ason............cccoccuviviiiiiiie i $58.00
Full hookup — daily long weekend — high S€as0ON...........cccuuiiiiiiiiiiii e $60.00
Group Site day USE — IOW SEASON .......ueiiiiiiiiiie ittt e e eenes $150.00

Page 19 of 23 049



Group site day use — Nigh SEASON .........cooiuiiiiiie e $200.00

Group site overnight — oW SEASON..........eeiii i e e e $275.00
Group site overnight — high SEaSON...........ooii i $320.00
Late night entry keycard deposit ............cueeiiiiiiiie e $25.00
Late night entry keycard fee for lost, stolen or damaged cards.............ccccoovieeiieiiiiiiicinneen. $25.00
Late payment e (DI daAY) ......ooo i $5.00

Overnight full hook-up April monthly camping fee..................ccceeeeeeenneneneee........$900.00/month

Overnight full hook-up May monthly camping fee...........cccocviiiiiiiiiiee $900.00/month
Overnight full hook-up June monthly camping fe€...........ccoooviieeiiiciee e, $900.00/month
Overnight full hook-up September monthly camping fee..........coccceeiiiiiiiiiiiien. $900.00/month
Overnight visitor — no vehicle — extra adult on site (maximum - 4 adults per site)............. $11.00

Overnight guest boat [aUNCN ............coviiiieeeeeee e $20.00
Overnight Camping visitor vehicles (maximum 1 per site, includes driver).............ccccceeee... $20.00

Overnight family vehicle (must be from same address and may be required to show proof of

2o [0 [ T1) SRR $11.00
Overnight campers with pets ...........c.coc.... $5.00 daily per pet or max $20.00 per week per pet
Picnic fee (extended campsite time — low Season ONly)..........ccooeiiiiiiiiiii i $20.00
RESEIVAION O ... ettt e nae e ne e $12.00
Tenting — double Site — daily Sunday through Thursday — low season.......................... $65.00
Tenting — double Site — daily Friday and Saturday — low season................ccccoeviinenn.n. $66.00
Tenting — double Site — daily long weekends — low season............cccoeviviiiiiiiiiinnnnen. $66.00
Tenting — double Site — daily Sunday through Thursday — high season...................... $73.00
Tenting — double Site — daily Friday and Saturday — high season.............................. $77.00
Tenting — double Site — daily long weekends — high season..................ooiiiiinne, $82.00
Tenting — regular — daily Sunday through Thursday — low season...........ccccccceeeeviiiciineeen.nn. $33.00
Tenting — regular — daily Friday and Saturday — [ow S€ason...........ccccceeeiivieiiieeiiiie e $34.00

Page 20 of 23 050



Tenting — regular — daily long weekend — oW SEaSON..........coiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e a e $34.00

Tenting — regular — daily Sunday through Thursday — high season.............cccccccoeeeiiiiinnnen. $38.00
Tenting — regular — daily Friday and Saturday — high season.............cccccoveviie i, $45.00
Tenting — regular — daily long weekend — high S€asonN..............ccccoviiiiiii e $47.00
Tenting — view — daily Sunday through Thursday — low season............cccccceeeeiiiiiiiiinnneen.n. $36.00
Tenting — view — daily Friday and Saturday — [ow S€ason..........ccccceeeiiiiciiiiiceiie e $37.00
Tenting — view — daily long weekend — [OW SEASON............ceevieieiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e $37.00
Tenting — view — daily Sunday through Thursday — high season.............cccocccciiiiiiieiinen. $42.00
Tenting — view — daily Friday and Saturday — high season..............cccooveiieiiiiiiiiiiieee e, $49.00
Tenting — view — daily long weekend — high season.............cccccee e, $51.00
Tenting — waterfront — daily Sunday through Thursday — low season...........ccccccccevevvvnneenn. $45.00
Tenting — waterfront — daily Friday and Saturday — low season..........cccccccccovveiiiiiieeeceeeen, $46.00
Tenting — waterfront — daily long weekend — Iow S€asoN..........cccccvieiieiiiii i $54.00

Tenting — waterfront — daily Sunday through Thursday — high season..............c.ccccccvveee.. $50.00
Tenting — waterfront — daily Friday and Saturday — high season...........ccccccoevivii e $57.00
Tenting — waterfront — daily long weekend — high s€ason...........ccccccviiiiiiii i $59.00

Tenting — preferred beachfront sites A, B, C and D — daily Sunday through Thursday — low
EYCY= LT o] o OSSPSR $46.00

Tenting — preferred beachfront sites A, B, C and D - daily Friday and Saturday — low
YT ET o] 1SS $47.00

Tenting — preferred beachfront sites A, B, C and D - daily long weekend - low
Yo T o] S $58.00

Tenting — preferred beachfront sites A, B, C and D — daily Sunday through Thursday — high
Y <= 1o o H RSP $51.00

Tenting — preferred beachfront sites A, B, C and D — daily Friday and Saturday — high
Yo 1o o TSRS $59.00

Tenting — preferred beachfront sites A, B, C and D - daily long weekend — high
YCY- 1o ) o FO RO RPRRTR $61.00

o
[6)]
|_\

Page 21 of 23



SaNi-AUMP NON-CAMPET ........eiiieiiiiiiee et e e e e e e e e e s et e e e s steeeeeaassseeeeeassseeeeeassseeeesannneeens $10.00

Y=Y 1T 0 F=1 I [T o Lo T | RO $250.00
Seasonal non-refundable prepayment...........oooviiiiiieee e $1,000.00
Seas0oNal FEQUIAT SILE ........viiiiiiiie e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $4,817.00
SEASONAI VIBW SIE. .o e $5,255.00
Seasonal WaterfrONT SILE........ooeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e s $5,627.00
SASONAI WALIISE ...t $100.00
Unrequired early positioning - application fee............oooiiiiii e $100.00

o
[6)]
N

Page 22 of 23



Second Friday in
January

First Monday in
February

Second Monday in
March

Second Sunday in April

September 15

September 30, 12:00 pm

Schedule B

Seasonal Calendar

Deadline for refunds on seasonal site deposit.

No refund given after this date.

Partial non-refundable site payment due date.

Final seasonal site payment is due. If payment not received in full
a $5.00 penalty charge will be added each day to a maximum of
30 days. After 30 days your site will be considered forfeited and
no refunds will be issued.

Seasonal move-in day.

Deadline for seasonal deposit. If payment not received in full a
$5.00 penalty charge will be added each day to a maximum of 30
days. After 30 days your site will be considered forfeited and no
refunds will be issued.

End of seasonal camping season.

o
[6)]
w

Page 23 of 23






Cultus Lake Park

TREE AND PLANT BYLAW NO. 1153, 2019
Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020

A Bylaw to amend Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019.

Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park Board
to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 220 — Enforcement Powers of the
Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 — Payment
of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides that fines and
other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park bylaw must be paid to
the Park.

The Board for Cultus Lake Park did enact a bylaw cited as Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw
No. 1153, 2019.

The Board for Cultus Lake Park deems it advisable to amend said bylaw.

The Board for Cultus Lake Park, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. TITLE

This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “The Cultus Lake Park Board Bylaw Tree and Plant
Bylaw No. 1153, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020”.

2. AMENDMENTS
Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019 is amended as follows:
21 Removing section 4.10 and replacing with the following:
410 No person will remove or damage a tree without permission or after an application
is denied. Fines will be paid in accordance with Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice
Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Schedule A-13 of said Bylaw and will also
incur the comparable value replacement cost of the removed or damaged tree.
2.2  Adding section:
4.14 Tree removal permits, regarding construction, will not be issued until
the leaseholder has a valid building permit for the leased lot where the structure
will be built.
23 Adding to Schedule A:

(a) Maidenhair Tree ‘Gingko biloba’

o
(6)]
(6)]



(b) Pyrus calleryana ‘Chanticleer’

(c) Tilia Cordata ‘Litlle Leaf Linden’

(d) Acer platanoides ‘Royal Red’

(e) Metasequoia glyptostroboboides ‘Ogon
(f) Oak

(g) Beech

(h) Maple

(i) Locust

(j) Katsura

3 EFFECTIVE DATE
READ A FIRST TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020
READ A SECOND TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020
READ A THIRD TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020

ADOPTED this XX day of XXXXX, 202X

Joe Lamb, Chair Bonny Bryant
Cultus Lake Park Board Chief Administrative Officer

| HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true
and correct copy of The Cultus Lake Park Board
Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019
Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020

Chief Administrative Officer

o
(o)
(o))



Cultus Lake Park

PROPERTY MAINTENANCE BYLAW NO. 1149, 2019

Amendment Bylaw No. 1167, 2020
A Bylaw to amend Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019.

Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park Board
to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 220 — Enforcement Powers of the
Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 — Payment
of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides that fines and
other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park bylaw must be paid to
the Park.

The Board for Cultus Lake Park did enact a bylaw cited as Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance
Bylaw No. 1149, 2019;

The Board for Cultus Lake Park deems it advisable to amend said bylaw;

The Board for Cultus Lake Park, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. TITLE

This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance Bylaw No.
1149, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1167, 2020".

2. AMENDMENTS
Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019 is amended as follows:
21 Adding section:

Garbage, Recycling, Greens Waste and Compost — Wildlife Attractants

3.6 All leaseholders, tenants or occupiers of a leased lot must ensure that any and all
garbage, recycling, greens waste bins and any structures to contain such
receptacles must be kept entirely on the leased lot.

3.7 Garbage, Recycling and Greens Waste bins must only be set out between 12:00
pm the day prior to pick up and 8:00 am only on the designated day of collection
and must be returned to the leased lot the day of collection.

3.8 All leaseholders, tenants or occupiers of a leased lot must ensure that any and all

garbage, recycling and greens waste bins are stored in a safe, sanitary and
inoffensive manner.

o
(%))
~



3.9 All leaseholders, tenants or occupiers of a leased lot must ensure that any and all
garbage, recycling, greens waste bins, pet food, composts, and barbeques are
stored in such a manner as to avoid attracting wild and domestic animals.

3.10 Allleaseholders are responsible for all garbage clean up, within two hours of being
notified there is a garbage clean up required.

3.11 Allleaseholders, tenants or occupiers of a leased lot must ensure that all composts

and compostable substances are stored in a safe, sanitary and inoffensive
manner.

EFFECTIVE DATE
READ A FIRST TIME AS AMENDED this 15 day of JANUARY 2020
READ A SECOND TIME this 15 day of JANUARY 2020
READ A THIRD TIME AS this 15 day of JANUARY 2020

ADOPTED this XX day of XXXXX, 20XX

Joe Lamb, Chair Bonny Bryant
Cultus Lake Park Board Chief Administrative Officer

| HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Property
Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019 Amendment
Bylaw No. 1167, 2020

Chief Administrative Officer

o
[6)]
[00]



Cultus Lake Park

BOATING AND FORESHORE BYLAW NO. 1143, 2019
Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020

A Bylaw to amend The Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019

Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park Board
to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 220 — Enforcement Powers of the
Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 — Payment
of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides that fines and
other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park bylaw must be paid to
the Park.

The Board for Cultus Lake Park did enact a bylaw cited as Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore
Bylaw No. 1143, 2019;

The Board for Cultus Lake Park deems it advisable to amend said bylaw;

The Board for Cultus Lake Park, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. TITLE

This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No.
1143, 2019, Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020.

2. AMENDMENTS
Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 is amended as follows:
21 Adding sections:
3.3 (t) All buoy’s in the foreshore must display, in a conspicuous location and in a
permanent and legible manner, a R# (residential house number), S# (Sunnyside site

number) or NR# (a number supplied by the Park).

3.3 (u) No person will place or relocate a buoy, buoy anchor, boat lift or other mooring
device in the foreshore except as authorized by the CAO.

3.3 (v) If there are two registrants on the moorage registration form, both registrants must
sign the form and the indemnity.

o
[6)]
[(e]



3. EFFECTIVE DATE
READ A FIRST TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020
READ A SECOND TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020
READ A THIRD TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020

ADOPTED this XX day of XXXXX, 20XX

Joe Lamb, Chair Bonny Bryant
Cultus Lake Park Board Chief Administrative Officer

| HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Boating and
Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019, Amendment
Bylaw No. 1168, 2020.

Chief Administrative Officer

o
(o))
o



Cultus Lake Park

PARKING AND TRAFFIC REGULATIONS BYLAW NO. 1154, 2019
Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020

A Bylaw to amend The Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019

Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park Board
to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 220 — Enforcement Powers of the
Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 — Payment
of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides that fines and
other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park bylaw must be paid to
the Park.

The Board for Cultus Lake Park did enact a bylaw cited as The Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic
Regulations Bylaw No. 1154;

The Board for Cultus Lake Park deems it advisable to amend said bylaw;

The Board for Cultus Lake Park, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. TITLE

This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations
Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020

2. AMENDMENTS
Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 is amended as follows:
21 Adding to section 2.2 DEFINITIONS OF TERMS:

“To Park or park” means to bring a vehicle or recreational vehicle to a stop and leave it
unoccupied.

“Public Areas” means any street, laneway, avenue, way, drive, boulevard, sidewalk,
driveway, beaches, wharves, school ground, or such premises as the Board may from
time to time designate

“Stand” means a vehicle that is stopped and occupied.

“Store” means to park on more than three (3) days in a calendar month or for a period of
time exceeding 72 hours.

“Trailer” means an unpowered vehicle towed by another.

o
()}
-



2.2 Remove and replace section 11 with:
1. PARKING IN PUBLIC AREAS AND LEASED LOTS

11.1  No person will park any vehicle, recreational vehicle or trailer without

displaying valid insurance, be it motorized or non-motorized, within the
public areas.

1.2 (a) No person will park a recreational vehicle or trailer, regardless of
whether the trailer is attached to a towing vehicle, unless it can be
completely contained within the lease lot.

(b) Concessions will be made for seasonal maintenance, cleaning,
loading and/or unloading of recreational vehicles and boats on
trailers (hitched or unhitched to a vehicle) to a maximum of 72
hours.

11.3 No person will store any vehicle, recreational vehicle or trailer, regardless

of whether the trailer is attached to a towing vehicle, within the residential

overflow parking area along Sunnyside Boulevard.

11.4 No person will park any vehicle with a posed G.V.W Exceeding 3700 KG,
or having an overall length, of more than 7 meters within the Park.

2.3  Changing Schedule A to read:
Summer Rates:
¢ $3.50 per hour (max. 2 hours) or $12 per day, Monday through Thursday.
3. EFFECTIVE DATE
READ A FIRST TIME this 19 day of FEBRUARY, 2020
READ A SECOND TIME this 19 day of FEBRUARY, 2020
READ A THIRD TIME this 19 day of FEBRUARY, 2020

ADOPTED this XX day of XXXXX, 20XX

Joe Lamb, Chair Bonny Bryant
Cultus Lake Park Board Chief Administrative Officer

o
(o))
N



| HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Parking
and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019
Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020

Chief Administrative Officer

o
(o]
w






Cultus Lake Park

MANAGEMENT OF PUBLIC AREAS BYLAW NO. 1146, 2019
Amendment Bylaw No. 1170, 2020

A Bylaw to amend Cultus Lake Park Management of Public Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019.

Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park Board
to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 220 — Enforcement Powers of the
Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 — Payment
of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides that fines and
other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park bylaw must be paid to
the Park.

The Board for Cultus Lake Park did enact a bylaw cited as Cultus Lake Park Management of Public
Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019;

The Board for Cultus Lake Park deems it advisable to amend said bylaw;

The Board for Cultus Lake Park, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. TITLE

This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Cultus Lake Park Management of Public Areas Bylaw
No. 1146, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1170, 2020”.

2. AMENDMENTS

Cultus Lake Park Management of Public Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019 is amended as follows:

21 Adding to section 2.2 DEFINITIONS OF TERMS:
“Natural Park Feature” means a tree, shrub, herb, flower, grass, turf or other plant and
all soil, sand, silt, gravel, rock, mineral, wood, fallen timber, or other natural resource within
the Park.

2.2  Adding section:
3.16  No person will cut, trim, dig up, excavate, deface, remove, damage, possess, or in

any way injure any Natural Park Feature without prior written permission or permit
issued by the CAO or designate.

o
(o))
(6)]



3. EFFECTIVE DATE
READ A FIRST TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020

READ A SECOND TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020
READ A THIRD TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020

ADOPTED this XX day of XXXXX, 20XX

Joe Lamb, Chair Bonny Bryant
Cultus Lake Park Board Chief Administrative Officer

| HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Management
of Public Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019 Amendment
Bylaw No. 1170, 2020

Chief Administrative Officer

o
(o]
(o))






































































































[N
o



[N
=



[N
N



[N
w






[N
a1



[N
»



[N
\'



[N
o)



[N
O




































[N
=



[N
N












[N
»



[N
\'









[N
o



[N
=



[N
N



[N
w






[N
a1



[N
»



[N
\'



[N
o



[N
©



140









143



144



145









148









[N
=



[N
N












[N
»



[N
\'






[N
O






[N
=



[N
N












[N
»



[N
\'






[N
O






[N
=



[N
N












[N
»



[N
\'






[N
O






[N
=



[N
N












[N
»



[N
\'






[N
O






[N
=



[N
N









CULTUS LAKE PARK
REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD
DATE: March 18, 2020 FILE: 0550

SUBMITTED BY: Jacquie Spencer,
Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement

SUBJECT: 255 First Avenue Parking Request

PURPOSE:
To provide the Board with information on parking request at 255 First Avenue.
RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to grant the parking
request at 255 First Avenue to move their designated parking area from First Avenue to Birch
Street, provided,;

a) The previously designated parking areas along First Avenue is relinquished; and

b) That if a leaseholder wishes to sign their designated parking area, the cost and
responsibility to do so be shouldered by the leaseholder and signage is posted on
leased land.

DISCUSSION:

In September of 2018, the leaseholders of 255 First Avenue requested permission from the Board to
place parking signage along the Birch Street portion of their lot for designated parking. The matter of
First Avenue parking request was brought forward at the August 21, 2019 Regular meeting of the
Board. The following motion was approved:

4462-19 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board provided staff with direction to request that the
leaseholder of 255 First Ave remove all encroachments on park property; and

THAT the leaseholder be contacted to remove the hedge from around the stop sign as
well as on the First Avenue sides of the property within 60 days.

The leaseholders have removed the hedge from around the stop sign as well as on the First Avenue

sides of the property (pictured). The leaseholder wishes to receive permission for designated parking
on the Birch Street side of the leasehold property.

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-70 - reports - board meetings\2020\03 18 202012020.03.18 first avenue parking request\first avenue parking request final.doc

19



Section 7.2 of the Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 states:

“The Registered Leaseholder(s) or Current Occupant(s) in the residential areas have exclusive
right to the allocated land to which the residence is addressed between lot lines detailed in the
Cultus Lake Park Zoning Bylaw No. 1375, 2016 solely for the purpose of parking a motor
vehicle (the “Designated Area”). Where a property borders two roadways as in the case of a
corner lot, the side to which the residence is addressed will represent the Designated Area.
Any consideration for additional parking at a corner lot must be submitted in writing to the
Cultus Lake Park Board for approval, based on parking availability and traffic safety
considerations.”

Staff have not identified any traffic safety concerns with respect to granting designated parking at the
Birch Street side of the property.

STRATEGIC PLAN:

This report does not impact the Board’s Strategic Plan.

ATTACHMENTS:

Photo of 255 First Avenue taken February 27, 2020

Prepared by: Approved for Submission to the Board by:
Jacquie Spencer Bonny Bryant
Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations Chief Administrative Officer

and Bylaw Enforcement

[N
»



255 First Avenue as of February 27, 2020

[N
\'






[N
O



N
o



N
—



N
N



N
w






N
(63}



N
(o))



N
Ny



N
o



N
[(e]































































N
o



N
-



N
N



N
w






N
(63}



N
(o))



N
|



N
o



N
[(o]



240



N
=



	5 2020.02.19 Regluar Meeting Minutes Final
	6a Environmental and Public Area Comm Minutes Feb 21
	7a 2020 03 18 Financial Plan 2020 - 2024 Report and Bylaw
	8a Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 1165,2020
	8b 2020 - Amendment Bylaw - Tree and Plant
	8c 2020 - Amendment Bylaw - Property Maintenance
	8d 2020 - Amendment Bylaw - Boating and Foreshore
	8e 2020 - Amendment Bylaw - Parking and Traffic
	8f  2020 - Amendment Bylaw - Management of Public Areas
	8g 2020 - Amendment Bylaw - BNEB
	8h 2020 03 18 Short term rental feed back and report
	8i 2020 03 18 Short Term Rental Reoprt and Bylaw
	8j 2020 03 18 Home Based Business and Commercial Licenses Bylaw and report
	9b 202003 18 DVP Applicaiton and Report LR 29 Lakeshore
	9c 2020 03 18 29 Lakehore Drive DVP
	9d 2020 03 18 Recycle Report
	9f 2020 03 18 Propsoed Designated Smoking Areas
	9g 2020 03 18 Jaws of Life
	9h 2020 03 18 Cruise for Cars event
	9i 2020 03 18 CL Triathlon Event
	10a 2020 03 18 Enviro Committee Report
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



